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BY EMAIL December 10, 2020 
 
 
 
Mr. Jean-François Pagé 
Clerk of the Committee 
Standing Committee on Health 
House of Commons 
6th Floor, 131 Queen Street 
Ottawa, ON  K1A 0A6 
 
 
 

Dear Mr. Pagé: 
 
RE: House of Commons’ Order of October 26th, 2020  
 
 I am writing to you further to the order of the House of Commons of October 26th, 2020 
(the “Order”), which instructed the Standing Committee on Health (the “Committee”) to 
undertake a study on the emergency situation facing Canadians in light of the second wave of 
the COVID-19 pandemic, and ordered the production of documents from various government 
departments and ministerial offices relating to this study. 
 
 The Order further required that all documents provided, before their tabling in the House 
and distribution to the Committee, be vetted by my Office for matters of personal privacy 
information and national security, and for the category of documents relating to the COVID-19 
Vaccine Task Force and its subcommittees, that they be also vetted for information the disclosure 
of which could reasonably be expected to interfere with contractual or other negotiations 
between the government and a third party. 
 

On December 7th, 2020, my Office was provided with documents from the Clerk of the 
Privy Council Office (PCO), the Office of the Minister of Health, the Office of the Minister of Public 
Services and Procurement Canada and the Prime Minister’s Office. The documents were 
accompanied by letters from the Clerk of the Privy Council and the ministerial offices, which are 
attached for your information.   
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 My Office received approximately 5,000 documents (totalling almost 27,000 pages), 
which we are in the process of reviewing and vetting.  At this stage, we believe that we will be 
able to complete the review and redaction within seven days of receipt of the documents.  Should 
this change, we will advise the Committee and seek an extension as provided in the second report 
of this Committee, adopted by the House on December 4th, 2020.  

 
At this time, we want to advise the Committee of the following.  First, the letters from the 

government indicate that the documents provided to my Office represent a “first batch” of 
documents produced in response to the Order. Therefore, my Office expects to receive 
subsequent “batches” of documents from the government. 

 
Second, as indicated in the Clerk of the Privy Council’s letter of November 27th, 2020 to 

the Committee, and as confirmed by our current review of the documents, the majority of 
documents provided by the government are in one official language only.  This represents a 
departure from the long-standing and expected practice of the government to provide 
documents to the House and its committees in both official languages consistent with                       
Standing Order 32(4) which requires that any document distributed in or laid before the House 
be in both official languages.  We note that the second report of this Committee also states that 
all documents circulated to the Committee must be in both official languages. 

 
As a result, while we anticipate that my Office will be able to complete the vetting of the 

documents that have been provided to us within the timeline provided by the Order, only the 
documents in both official languages will be eligible for tabling in the House on                                  
December 16th, 2020, which is the earliest opportunity for tabling after the completion of my 
Office’s work.  I have written to the Clerk of the Privy Council, Mr. Ian Shugart, asking that he 
confirm whether the government intends to provide us with translated versions of the unilingual 
documents, and if so, when we can expect to receive them.  A copy of that letter is also attached 
for your information.   

 
My Office will continue to keep the Committee informed, including once we receive 

confirmation of the government’s approach to the production and translation of documents, and 
remains at the Committee’s disposal should it require further information or assistance in this 
matter. 
 
 

 Yours truly, 
   

  
 

 Philippe Dufresne 
 Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel 
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APPENDICES 
 

Letter from the Privy Council Office 
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Letter from the Office of the Prime Minister 
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Letter from the Office of the Minister of Public Services and Procurement Canada 
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Letter from the Office of the Minister of Health 
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Letter from the Law Clerk and Parliamentary Counsel to the Clerk of the Privy Council 
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